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2003 a1 29,974,298 4,477,860 08.28 14,682
o024 a1 28,123,300 4,201,340 98.68 14,742
2025 a1 23,190,046 3,464,361 98.68 14,742
2024 28,041,150 4,189,067 98.39 14,698
28,582,650 4,269,962 100.29 14,982
10 28,539,900 4,263,576 100.14 14,960
11 28,495,659 4,256,966 99.98 14,936
12 28,026,369 4,186,859 98.34 14,691
2025 23,071,668 3,446,676 98.18 14,667
23,031,554 3,440,684 98.01 14,642
23,190,046 3,464,361 08.68 14,742
23,116,521 3,453,377 98.37 14,695
23,076,942 3,447,464 98.20 14,670
23,438,534 3,501,483 99.74 14,900
23,407,334 3,496,822 99.61 14,881

2022 31 2023 -1.7

2023 2024 0.4

2024 2025 0.0

100x +
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2025 3 31
2025 2024
USD USD
9 1,033,083 288,783 3,742,346 559,069
SPV
25,600,000
2024
26,100,000
78 26,370,150 3,939,437 26,448,083 3,951,214
5,958 890 14,755 2,204
28,309,191 4,229,110 30,206,084 4,512,487
4,917,000 734,551 1,042,400 290,175
11 215050 32,261 237,016 35,408
5132050 766,811 2179416 325583
23,176,241 3,462,299 28,026,668 4,186,904
USD23,176,241 3,462,299 USD28,026,668 4,186,904
10 23500000 35,107 285,000.00 42,576
1
NAV USD98.6223 14,733 USD98.3392 14,601

2025 7 30
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2025 3 31
2025 2024
usb usD

12 417,188 62,324 480,814 71,829
89,793 13,414 175,406 26,204
506,981 75,738 656,220 98,033
11,13 214,166 31,994 235,059 35,115
11,13 53,439 7,983 58,762 8,778
11,13 40,156 5,999 44,074 6,584
11,13 40,156 5,999 44,074 6,584
11,13 2,779 415 2,941 439
11,13 23,742 3,547 26,565 3,969
11,13 18,665 2,788 18,640 2,785
22,896 3,420 27,604 4,124
24,409 3,646 24,024 3,589
440,408 65,793 481,743 71,968
66,573 9,945 174,477 26,065

66,573 9,945 174,477 26,065
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2025 3 31

2025 2024
usD usD

28,026,668 4,186,904 29,794,591 4,451,014

(4917,0000  (734551)  (1,942,400)  (290,175)

66,573 9,945 174,477 26,065

23,176,241 3,462,299 28,026,668 4,186,904
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2025 3 31
2025 2024
USD usD
66,573 9,945 174,477 26,065
SPV
496,021 74,101 - -
FVTPL
3,979 594 - -
FVTPL

(421,167) (62,918) (480,814) (71,829)

8,797 1,314 (127) (19)
(21,066) (3,147) (13,479) (2,014)
133,137 19,889 (319,943) (47,796)

(1,942,400) (290,175) - -

(1,942,400) (290,175) - -

(1,809,263)  (270,286) (319,943) (47,796)
3,742,346 559,069 4,062,289 606,865

1,933,083 288,783 3,742,346 559,069

98,590 14,728 174,279 26,036
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UBS "l 2013 12
2 2022 4 19
One Nexus
Way CamanaBay Grand Cayman KY1-9005 Cayman Islands
2022 5 31
SPv
SPV SPV
SPV 0] Wil
SPv (i)
SPv
2025 3 31 2024 3 31

SPV 98.08 100

WIL GPII, LP.

GP
2022 2 14
LPA GP
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2025 3 31 8
UBS AG SPV 113.78
2024  94.37
(i) SpPv
(i)
NAV
NAV SPV
SPV
2.
IASB IFRS
IFRS IASB
USD
IFRS 10 IFRS 12 IAS 27

2012
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2
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ii
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NAV NAV
3
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2025 3 31
678,145,396

2025 3 31
CEI6,680,353

2024 3 31
CEI2,695,776

ECL

2025 3 31

2024 3 31
493,235,857

126,620,475
541,193,133

88,623,274
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FVTPL

2013 12 2 50
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2025 3 31

2025 3 31 5,000,000
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2025 3 31
7.
. 1
2
3
1 2 3
2025 USD UusD uUsD uUsD
FVTPL
SPv
- - 26,370,150 26,370,150
- - 26,370,150 26,370,150
2024
FVTPL
SPV
- - 26,448,983 26,448,983
- - 26,448,983 26,448,983
3 2025 3
31 2024 3 31
2025
26,370,150 N/A
2024

26,448,983 N/A
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2025 3 31
7.
SPV 6(iii) 41
2025 3 31 2024 3 31 3
3
3 2025 2024
FVTPL usD usD
26,448,983 25,968,169
(496,021) -
FVTPL (3,979) -
FVTPL 421,167 480,814
26,370,150 26,448,983
NAV NAV
FVTPL
FVTPL
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2025 3 31
8.
NAV
GP
1
NAV
GP
GP
1
NAV
1
NAV
1 NAV
1 NAV
2025 3 31 SPv 5

1,318,508 2024 3 31 1,322,449 5
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2025 3 31
8.
2025 3 31 2024 3 31
2025 2024
SPV - 113.78% 94.37%
113.78% 94.37%
SPV
SPV 5 2025 3 31 2024 3 31
2025 2024
VAULT Cayman Il Investments O 2032 6 7 113.78% 94.37%
113.78% 94.37%
2025 3 31
196,652,941 29.00%
185,829,117 27.40%
135,142,656 19.93%
19,999,932 2.95%
3,568,487 0.53%
541,193,133 79.80%
532,260,001 78.49%
5,364,645 0.79%

3,568,487 0.53%
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541,193,133 79.80%
2025 3 31
2024 3 31
134,009,277 27.17%
91,209,631 18.49%
82,625,009 16.75%
3,568,487 0.72%
311,412,494 63.14%
307,844,007 62.41%
3,568,487 0.72%
311,412,494 63.14%
SPv
1 19,331

2024 3 31 37,423 1

85/214



EDINETOOOO
o o o o o o o =K RS )
Ooooooooooooooooooad

2025 3 31
8.
2025 3 31 2024 3 31
2025 UsD UsD uUsD
1,933,083 - 1,933,083
SPv - 26,370,150 26,370,150
- 5,958 5,958
1,933,083 26,376,108 28,309,191
- 4,917,000 4,917,000
- 215,950 215,950
- 5,132,950 5,132,950
1,933,083
2024
3,742,346 - 3,742,346
SPV - 26,448,983 26,448,983
- 14,755 14,755
3,742,346 26,463,738 30,206,084
- 1,942,400 1,942,400
- 237,016 237,016
. 2,179,416 2,179,416

3,742,346
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2025 3 31
2025 3 31 2024 3 31

1 1
2025 USD usbD USD
- 1,933,083 1,933,083
SPV 26,370,150 - 26,370,150
- 5,958 5,958
26,370,150 1,939,041 28,309,191
- 4,917,000 4,917,000
- 215,950 215,950
- 5,132,950 5,132,950

2024

- 3,742,346 3,742,346
SPV 26,448,983 - 26,448,983
- 14,755 14,755
26,448,983 3,757,101 30,206,084
- 1,942,400 1,942,400
- 237,016 237,016
- 2,179,416 2,179,416
2025 3 31

2024 3 31
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2025 3 31
8.
SPv
A+ 2024
A+
A- 2024  A-
SPV SPv
SPv SPv
@
(b)
©
SPV LPA
ECL

12
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12
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2025 3 31 2024 3 31
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2025 3 31
BBH & Co
CDS
ECL
2025 2024
uSsD uUSsD
1,933,083 3,742,346
1,933,083 3,742,346
1
2025 2024
285,000 305,000
(50,000) (20,000)
235,000 285,000
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2025 3 31
10.
11.
2025 3 31 2024 3 31
2025 2024
usD usD
64,880 76,689
16,220 18,832
12,165 14,379
12,165 14,379
811 942
10,677 16,708
9,140 9,200
23,500 24,104
66,392 61,783
215,950 237,016
NAV 0.8
NAV 0.20
NAV
0.15
NAV 0.15

10,000
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2025 3 31
11.
5,000
NAV
0.01
NAV 0.07
3,750
5,000
1 CIMA 1,000
NAV 0.025 1,500
SPV
SPV
12,
2025 2024
USD USD
FVTPL (3,979) -
FVTPL 421,167 480,814

417,188 480,814
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(i)

(i)
(iii)

2025 3 31
UBSAG
2025 3 31 2024 3 31
11

(

~—

(i) (iii)
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2025 3 31
14.
1 NAV
1
0.005
2025 3 31 2024 3 31
2025 3 31 2024 3 31
15.
2025 3 31
2025 4 SPv 4,500,000

2025 7 30
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Statement of Financia Position

Asat 31 March 2025
2025 2024

Notes UsD UsD
Assets
Cash 9 1,933,083 3,742,346
Investment in SPV Notes (Cost:
USD25,600,000) 26,370,150 26,448,983
(2024: Cost: USD26,100,000) 7,8
Receivables 5,958 14,755
Total Assets 28,309,191 30,206,084
Liabilities
Payable for Equity Units redeemed 4,917,000 1,942,400
Fees payable 11 215,950 237,016
Total Liabilities 5,132,950 2,179,416
Equity (being Net assets attributable to the
Unitholder) 23,176,241 28,026,668
Representing:
USD Units
Equity USD23,176,241 USD28,026,668
Number of units outstanding 10 235,000.00 285,000.00
Net Asset Value (“NAV”) per unit USD98.6223 USD98.3392

Approved on behalf of the Trustee on 30 July 2025.

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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Statement of Comprehensive Income
For the year ended 31 March 2025

2025 2024
Notes UsSD usb
Net gain on investments 12 417,188 480,814
Interest income 89,793 175,406
Total investment gain 506,981 656,220
Distribution fees 11,13 214,166 235,059
Manager Support Service Provider 11,13 53,439 58,762
Investment Manager fees 11,13 40,156 44,074
Fee Agent fees 11,13 40,156 44,074
Agent Member Company fees 11,13 2,779 2,941
Administration fees 11,13 23,742 26,565
Custody fees 11,13 18,665 18,640
Audit fees 22,896 27,604
Other fees and expenses 24,409 24,024
Total operating expenses 440,408 481,743
Operating gain 66,573 174,477
Total gain (being increasein Net Assets
attributable to the Unitholder from operations) 66,573 174,477

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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Statement of Changes in Equity
For the year ended 31 March 2025

2025 2024
USD UsD
Equity at beginning of year 28,026,668 29,794,591
Equity units redeemed (4,917,000) (1,942,400)
Total gain (being increase in Net Assets attributable to the
Unitholder from operations) 66,573 174,477
Equity at end of year 23,176,241 28,026,668

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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Statement of Cash Flows
For the year ended 31 March 2025
2025 2024
USD UsD
Operating activities
Total gain (being increase in Net Assets attributable to the
Unitholder from operations) 66,573 174,477
Proceeds from sale of investment in SPV Notes 496,021 -
Adjustment for items not involving cash
Realised loss on financial assetsat FVTPL 3,979 -
Movement in unrealised gain on financial assetsat FVTPL (421,167) (480,814)
Net change in non-cash operating balances
Decrease/ (increase) in receivables 8,797 (127)
Decrease in fees payable (21,066) (13,479)
Net cash provided by / (used in) operating activities 133,137 (319,943)
Financing activities
Payments for repurchase of equity units, net of payable for
equity units redeemed (1,942,400) -
Net cash used in financing activities (1,942,400) -
Net change in cash (1,809,263) (319,943)
Cash at beginning of year 3,742,346 4,062,289
Cash at end of year 1,933,083 3,742,346
Supplementary information:
Interest received 98,590 174,279

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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Notesto the financia statements
31 March 2025

1. GENERAL INFORMATION

Daiwa WiL Ventures I11, LP. Fund (the “Series Trust”) has been created and established pursuant
to the Master Trust Deed (the “Master Trust Deed”) for UBS Universal Trust (Cayman) IIl (the
“Master Trust”) dated 2 December 2013, as amended and a Supplemental Trust Deed dated 19 April
2022 (the “Supplement Trust Deed” and together with the Master Trust Deed). The address of its
registered office is One Nexus Way, Camana Bay, Grand Cayman KY 1-9005, Cayman Islands.

The Series Trust commenced trading on 31 May 2022 issuing USD Units.

The investment objective of the Series Trust is to seek growth of trust assets, in USD terms,
by investing, in principle, in Japanese and US private equities (including private companies of
non-Japanese and non- US companies doing business in Japan and the United States of
America).

The Series Trust's exposure to the Japanese and US private equities will be obtained indirectly
through acquiring notes (the “SPV Notes’) issued by VAULT Cayman Il Investments (the
“SPV lIssuer”), a Cayman domiciled exempted company established for the purposes of issuing
separate series of notes (including the SPV Notes). The SPV Notes will provide exposure to (i)
WiL Ventures I, LP., Delaware limited partnership (the “PE Fund”) through the SPV Issuer’
S interest as a limited partner of the PE Fund and (ii) a cash portion available to fund coupons
payable to the Series Trust (if any), any capital calls from the PE Fund, or any potential
clawback, taxes, indemnity expenses and similar claims against the SPV Issuer (provided such
cash portion may be invested into short-term financia instruments, money market funds or
other liquid instruments) ((i) and (ii) together the “Private Equity Portion”). As of 31 March
2025 and 31 March 2024, the Series Trust holds 98.08% and 100% ownership of the SPV Notes,
respectively.

The PE Fund governed by its second amended and restated limited partnership agreement dated 14
February 2022 (the “PE Fund LPA™), by amongst others WIL GP IlI, LP., a Delaware limited
partnership, as the general partner (i.e. investment manager) (the “PE Fund GP’). The genera
partner of the PE Fund GP, WiL Management Ill, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company, is
primarily responsible for the investment activities of the PE Fund.

The Series Trust may also hold short-term financial instruments (including USD cash), (the “Cash
Portion”) to allow partial liquidity of the Series Trust.

The Investment Manager has day-to-day investment decision-making and ongoing monitoring
responsibility over the portion of the Series Trust's portfolio comprising the SPV Notes (which
provide exposure to the Private Equity Portion) and the Cash Portion (the “ Subadvised Portfolio”).

The Manager and the Trustee understand that UBS AG, London Branch as Liquidity Intermediary
and will continue to conduct its operations in the ordinary course.

On 30 September 2024, the Fee Agent changed its name from Credit Suisse International to UBS

AG, London Branch. On 30 September 2024, the Agent Member Company changed its name from
Credit Suisse Securities (Japan) Limited to UBS Securities Japan Co., Ltd.
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Notesto the financia statements

31 March 2025
(Continued)

1. GENERAL INFORMATION (continued)

As of 31 March 2025, under the Liquidity Arrangement as defined in Note 8, the Series Trust holds
113.78% (2024 94.37%) investment in SPV Notes with UBS AG, London Branch (the “Liquidity
Intermediary”) as Liquidity Intermediary.

Investment Guidelines

The Manager has appointed Daiwa Asset Management (Europe) Ltd (the “Investment
Manager”) with discretionary management power to manage and monitor the Subadvised
Portfolio. The Investment Manager will manage the Subadvised Portfolio in accordance with
the investment policy described in this section and the investment restrictions described below.

Investments may be made by the Investment Manager for the account of the Series Trust in
the following:

(i) The SPV Notesin respect of the Private Equity Portion; and
(it) Short-term financia instruments (including USD cash) in respect of the Cash Portion. For the
avoidance of doubt, overnight cash balances may be held in a sweep vehicle.

The Investment Manager may not take any short positions to implement investment decisions
or manage cashflows nor borrow money for the account of the Series Trust.

The Investment Manager may use derivatives only for the hedging purpose, provided that total
notional principal amount of derivatives held for the account of the Series Trust shall not
exceed the NAV of the Series Trust.

The Investment Manager will generally manage the Subadvised Portfolio in accordance with
the following guidelines:

In principle, the Investment Manager will invest a majority of the NAV in the SPV Notes, in
order to provide exposure to the Private Equity Portion.

The SPV Notes providing exposure to the Private Equity Portion are denominated in USD and
will not be hedged into other currencies. The Investment Manager will not invest in non-USD
denominated assets.

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with IFRS Accounting Standards
(“IFRS") issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (“IASB”), and interpretations
issued by the International Financial Reporting Interpretations Committee of the IASB. The financia
statements are prepared on a going concern basis.

Thefinancia statements are presented in United States Dollars (“USD”).
The Series Trust has adopted Investment Entities (Amendments to IFRS 10, IFRS 12, and IAS 27)

(2012) (the “amendments’). Management concluded that the Series Trust meets the definition of an
investment entity.

Notes to the financia statements
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31 March 2025
(Continued)

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)

The preparation of financial statements in accordance with IFRS requires the Trustee and Manager
to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of policies and the
reported amounts of assets and liabilities, income and expenses. The estimates and associated
assumptions are based on historical experience and various other factors that are believed to be
reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which form the basis of making judgements about
the carrying value of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. Actual
results may differ from these estimates. The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on
an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the
estimate is revised. Judgements made by the Trustee and Manager in the application of IFRS that
have a significant effect on the financial statements and estimates with a significant risk of material
adjustment in the next period are discussed in Notes 7 and 8.

3. BASIS OF MEASUREMENT

The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for the following
material items:

Items Measurement basis
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss Fair value
(“FVTPL")

Investment in SPV Notesisincluded in this category.
4. CHANGES IN MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The Series Trust adopted Disclosure of Accounting Policies. (Amendments to IAS1 and IFRS
Accounting Standard Practice Statement 2) from 1 April 2024. Although the amendments did not
result in any changes to the accounting policies themselves, they impacted the accounting policy
information themselves, they impacted the accounting policy information disclosed in the financial
statements.

The amendments require the disclosure of “material” rather than “significant” accounting policies.
The amendments also provide guidance on the application of materiality to disclosure of accounting
policies, assisting entities to provide useful, entity-specific accounting policy information that users
need to understand other information in the financial statements.

5. STANDARDS ISSUED BUT NOT YET ADOPTED

A number of new standards are effective for annual periods beginning after 1 April 2024 and earlier
application is permitted; however, the Series Trust has not early applied these new or amended
standards in preparing these financial statements.

Of those standards that are not yet effective, none are expected to have a material impact on the
Series Trust’s financia statementsin the period of initial application.

Notesto the financia statements
31 March 2025
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(Continued)

6. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
The material accounting policies adopted by the Series Trust are as follows:

Financial assets and financia liabilities

(i) Recognition and initial measurement

The Series Trust initially recognises financial assets and financial liabilities at FVTPL on the trade
date, which is the date on which the Series Trust becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument. Other financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised on the date on which they
are originated.

A financial asset or financial liability is measured initially at fair value plus, for an item not at
FVTPL, transaction costs that are directly attributable to its acquisition or issue.

(ii) Classification and subsequent measurement

Classification of financial assets

On initial recognition, the Series Trust classifies financial assets as measured at amortised cost or
FVTPL.

A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if it meets both of the following conditions and is not
designated asat FVTPL:
it is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets to collect contractual cash
flows; and
its contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest (“SPPI”).

Business model assessment
In making an assessment of the objective of the business model in which afinancial asset is held, the
Series Trust considers al of the relevant information about how the business is managed, including:
the documented investment strategy and the execution of this strategy in practice. Thisincludes
whether the investment strategy focuses on earning contractual interest income, maintaining a
particular interest rate profile, matching the duration of the financial assets to the duration of
any related liabilities or expected cash outflows or realising cash flows through the sale of the
assets,
how the performance of the portfolio is evaluated and reported to the Series Trust's
management;
the risks that affect the performance of the business model (and the financial assets held within
that business model) and how those risks are managed,;
how the Investment Manager is compensated: e.g. whether compensation is based on the fair
value of the assets managed or the contractual cash flows collected; and
the frequency, volume and timing of sales of financial assets in prior periods, the reasons for
such sales and expectations about future sales activity.

Transfers of financial assets to third parties in transactions that do not qualify for derecognition are

not considered sales for this purpose, consistent with the Series Trust’s continuing recognition of the
assets.
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Notesto the financia statements

31 March 2025
(Continued)

6. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial assets and financia liabilities (continued)

(ii) Classification and subsequent measurement (continued)
Business model assessment (continued)

The Series Trust has determined that it has two business models:

Held-to-collect business model: this comprises of cash and receivables. These financial assets
are held to collect contractual cash flow.

Other business model: this comprises of the investment in SPV Notes. These financial assets
are managed and their performance is evaluated, on afair value basis.

Assessiment whether contractual cash flows are SPPI

For the purposes of this assessment, “principal” is defined as the fair value of the financial asset on
initial recognition. “Interest” is defined as consideration for the time value of money and for the
credit risk associated with the principal amount outstanding during a particular period of time and for
other basic lending risks and costs (e.g. liquidity risk and administrative costs), as well as a profit
margin.

In assessing whether the contractual cash flows are SPPI, the Series Trust considers the contractual
terms of the instrument. This includes assessing whether the financial asset contains a contractual
term that could change the timing or amount of contractual cash flows such that it would not meet
this condition. In making this assessment, the Series Trust considers:

- contingent events that would change the amount or timing of cash flows,

- leverage features,

- prepayment and extension features;

- terms that limit the Series Trust’s claim to cash flows from specified assets (e.g. non-recourse
features); and

- features that modify consideration of the time value of money (e.g. periodical reset of interest
rates).

Reclassifications

Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to their initial recognition unless the Series Trust
were to change its business model for managing financial assets, in which case all affected financial
assets would be reclassified on the first day of the first reporting period following the change in the
business model.

Subsequent measurement of financial assets

Financial assetsat FVTPL

These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Net gains and losses, including any interest or
dividend income and expense and foreign exchange gains and losses, are recognised in profit or loss
in the Statement of Comprehensive Income.

Investment in SPV Notesisincluded in this category.

Financial assets at amortised cost
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These assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method.
Interest income, foreign exchange gains and losses and impairment are recognised in the Statement
of Comprehensive Income. Any gain or |0ss on derecognition is aso recognised in profit or 10ss.
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Notesto the financia statements

31 March 2025
(Continued)

6. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial assets and financia liabilities (continued)

(ii) Classification and subsequent measurement (continued)
Financial assetsat amortised cost (continued)

Cash and receivables are included in this category.

Financial liabilities - Classification, subsequent measurement and gains and |osses
Financial liabilities are classified as measured at amortised cost or FVTPL.

A financial liability isclassified asat FVTPL if it isclassified as held for trading, it is aderivative or
it is designated as such on initial recognition. Financial liabilities at FVTPL are measured at fair
value and net gains and losses, including any interest expense, are recognised in profit or loss.

Other financia liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest
method. Interest expense and foreign exchange gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss. Any
gain or loss on derecognition is also recognised in profit or loss.

Asat 31 March 2025 and 31 March 2024, there were no financial liabilitiesat FVTPL.
Financial liabilities at amortised cost include fees payable.

(iii) Fair value measurement

“Fair value’ is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an
orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date in the principal or, in its
absence, the most advantageous market to which the Series Trust has access at that date. The fair
value of aliability reflects its non-performance risk.

When available, the Series Trust measures the fair value of an instrument using the quoted price in
an active market for that instrument. A market is regarded as active if transactions for the asset or
liability take place with sufficient frequency and volume to provide pricing information on an
ongoing basis. The Series Trust measures instruments quoted in an active market at a mid-price,
because this price provides a reasonable approximation of the exit price.

If there is no quoted price in an active market, then the Series Trust uses valuation techniques that
maximise the use of relevant observable inputs and minimise the use of unobservable inputs. The
chosen valuation technique incorporates al of the factors that market participants would take into
account in pricing atransaction.

The assets and liabilities of the Series Trust are valued on the last business day of each calendar
month or at such other times as determined by the Investment Manager and Trustee in their sole
discretion. The Series Trust’s investment in SPV Notes is measured at fair value, as determined by
the Investment Manager. Investment in SPV Notes is categorized in Level 3 of the fair value
hierarchy.
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Notesto the financia statements

31 March 2025
(Continued)

6. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial assets and financia liabilities (continued)

(iii) Fair value measurement (continued)

The PE Fund invested under SPV Note is valued, based on the annual audited financial statements
and the quarterly unaudited financial statements provided by the PE Fund, which may not align with
the relevant Valuation Day, and/or be published several months after the time of valuation.
Therefore, the Series Trust's NAV  as of the Valuation Day may not represent its NAV at the time
of publication. There is currently no established secondary market for the PE Fund in which the
Series Trust invests, and the valuation of the Series Trust’s equity interest is not based on the value
of the PE Fund's shares traded in the secondary market. The valuation price of the Series Trust may
fluctuate drastically depending on the performance trends of the invested companies in which the PE
Fund invest. The PE Fund is generally categorized in Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy.

PE Fund

The primary purpose of the PE Fund is to seek income and gains through the investment in
companies engaged primarily in the electronics, automative, airline, enterprise software, consumer,
financial, telecom, medical services, trading, internet, social and media industries in Japan and the
United States of America (U.S.).

Investments in the PE Fund consist of investments in privately held equity securities and convertible
equity instruments (CEI) for which market prices are not observable.

The fair value of private equity investments is value initially based upon transaction price and may
continue to be valued at cost for a period after acquisition, as this has been determined to be the best
indicator of fair value. The fair values of private equity instruments are determined by reference to
projected earnings multiples, the discounted cash flow method, public market or private transactions,
valuations for comparable companies and other measures which, in many cases, are unaudited at the
time received. Valuations may be derived by reference to observable valuation measures or
comparable companies or transactions (e.g. multiplying a key performance metric of the investee
company by a relevant valuation multiple observed in the range of comparable companies or
transactions), adjusted by the PE Fund GBP for differences between the investment and the
referenced comparable, and in some instances by reference to option pricing models or other similar
methods.

The fair value of CElsis estimated based on their net realisable value as determined by the PE Fund
GP after considering the terms of the agreement and conversion factors, CEIs include various types
of instruments including Simple Agreements for Future Equity (SAFE), Keep it Simple Securities
(KISS), Warrants and Convertible Equity Agreements.

The above investments are categorized in Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy and was based on
guantitative unobservable inputs not internally developed. Such items include financial instruments
for which the determination of fair value is based on prices from prior transactions or third party
pricing information without adjustment. Significant increases (decreases) in any of these inputs in
isolation would result in asignificantly higher (lower) fair value measurement.
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Notesto the financia statements

31 March 2025
(Continued)

6. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial assets and financia liabilities (continued)

(iii) Fair value measurement (continued)

PE Fund (continued)

As of 31 March 2025 and 2024, the PE Fund's net asset value was USD678,145,396 and
USD493,235,857 respectively.

As of 31 March 2025, the PE Fund held total investments of USD541,193,133 comprising of
common stocks of USD126,620,475, preferred stocks of USD407,892,305 and CEls of
USD6,680,353.

As of 31 March 2024, the PE Fund held total investments of USD311,412,494 comprising of
common stocks of USDS88,623,274, preferred stocks of USD220,093,444 and CEls of
USD2,695,776.

The Series Trust recognises transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy as at the end of the
reporting period during which the change has occurred.

(iv) Amortised cost measurement

The “amortised cost” of afinancial asset or financial liability is the amount at which the financial
asset or financial liability is measured on initial recognition minus the principal repayments, plus or
minus the cumulative amortisation using the effective interest method of any difference between that
initial amount and the maturity amount and, for financial assets, adjusted for any loss allowance.

(V) Impairment
The Series Trust recognises loss allowances for expected credit losses (“ECLS’) on financial assets
measured at amortised cost.

The Series Trust measures loss allowances at an amount equal to lifetime ECLS, except for the
following, which are measured at 12-month ECLs:

financial assets that are determined to have low credit risk at the reporting date; and
other financial assets for which credit risk (i.e. the risk of default occurring over the expected
life of the asset) has not increased significantly sinceinitial recognition.

When determining whether the credit risk of afinancial asset has increased significantly since initial
recognition and when estimating ECLS, the Series Trust considers reasonable and supportable
information that is relevant and available without undue cost or effort. This includes both
guantitative and qualitative information and analysis, based on the Series Trust's historical
experience and informed credit assessment and including forward-looking information.

The Series Trust assumes that the credit risk on a financial asset has increased significantly if it is
more than 30 days past due.
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Notesto the financia statements

31 March 2025
(Continued)

6. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial assets and financia liabilities (continued)

(V) Impairment (continued)
The Series Trust considers afinancial asset to be in default when:

the borrower is unlikely to pay its credit obligations to the Series Trust in full, without recourse
by the Series Trust to actions such as realising security (if any is held); or
the financial asset is more than 90 days past due.

The Series Trust considers a financial asset to have low credit risk when the credit rating of the
counterparty is equivalent to the globally understood definition of “investment grade”.

Lifetime ECLs are the ECLs that result from al possible default events over the expected life of a
financial instrument. 12-month ECL s are the portion of ECL s that result from default events that are
possible within the 12 months after the reporting date (or a shorter period if the expected life of the
instrument is less than 12 months). The maximum period considered when estimating ECLs is the
maximum contractual period over which the Series Trust is exposed to credit risk.

Measurement of ECLs

ECLs are a probability-weighted estimate of credit losses. Credit |osses are measured as the present
value of all cash shortfalls (i.e. the difference between the cash flows due to the Series Trust in
accordance with the contract and the cash flows that the Series Trust expects to receive).

ECLs are discounted at the effective interest rate of the financial asset.

Credit-impaired financial assets

At each reporting date, the Series Trust assesses whether financial assets carried at amortised cost
are credit-impaired. A financial asset is “credit-impaired” when one or more events that have a
detrimental impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset have occurred.

Evidence that afinancial asset is credit-impaired includes the following observable data:
significant financial difficulty of the borrower or issuer;
abreach of contract such as a default or being more than 90 days past due; or
it is probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation.

Presentation of allowance for ECLs in the Statement of Financial Position
Loss allowances for financial assets measured at amortised cost are deducted from the gross carrying
amount of the assets.

Write-off
The gross carrying amount of afinancial asset iswritten off when the Series Trust has no reasonable
expectations of recovering afinancial asset in its entirety or a portion thereof.
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Notesto the financia statements

31 March 2025
(Continued)

6. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial assets and financia liabilities (continued)

(vi) Derecognition

The Series Trust derecognises afinancial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the
financial asset expire or it transfers the right to receive the contractual cash flows in atransaction in
which substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset are transferred or
in which the Series Trust neither transfers nor retains substantially all of the risks and rewards of
ownership and does not retain control of the financial asset.

On derecognition of afinancial asset, the difference between the carrying amount of the asset (or the
carrying amount allocated to the portion of the asset that is derecognised) and the consideration
received (including any new asset obtained less any new liability assumed) is recognised in profit or
loss. Any interest in such transferred financial assets that is created or retained by the Series Trust is
recognised as a separate asset or liability.

The Series Trust may enter into transactions whereby it transfers assets recognised on its Statement
of Financial Position, but retains either al or substantially all of the risks and rewards of the
transferred assets or a portion of them. If all or substantialy all of the risks and rewards are retained,
then the transferred assets are not derecognised. Transfers of assets with retention of al or
substantially all of the risks and rewards include sale and repurchase transactions.

The Series Trust derecognises a financial liability when its contractual obligations are discharged,
cancelled or have expired.

On derecognition of a financia liability, the difference between the carrying amount extinguished
and the consideration paid (including any non-cash assets transferred or liabilities assumed) is
recognised in profit or loss.

(vii) Offsetting

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the Statement of
Financial Position when and only when there is a legally enforceable right to offset the recognised
amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously. This is generally not the case with master netting agreements and the related assets
and liabilities are presented gross in the Statement of Financial Position. As at 31 March 2025 or
2024, the Series Trust does not hold any financial assets or liabilities subject to master netting
arrangements.

Cash

Elian Trustee (Cayman) Limited as Trustee have appointed Sumitomo Mitsui Trust Bank, Limited
(London Branch) as its custodian (the “Custodian”). The Custodian have, in turn, appointed Brown
Brothers Harriman & Co. (“BBH”) as their sub-custodian (the “ Sub-Custodian™). Cash is ultimately
held at BBH as the Series Trust's banker. Cash comprises of cash held with maturities of 3 months
or lesswith BBH.
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31 March 2025
(Continued)

6. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Net gain on investments

Net gain on investments includes realised and the change in unrealised gain on financial assets and
liabilities at FVPTL. The realised loss on investments represents the difference between the carrying
amount of afinancial instrument at the beginning of the reporting year, or the transaction price if it
was purchased in the current reporting period, and the consideration received on disposal. The
movement in unrealised gain on investments represents the difference between the carrying amount
of afinancial instrument at the beginning of the period, or the transaction price if it was purchased in
the current reporting year, and its carrying amount at the end of the reporting year.

Interest income

Interest income, is recognised in profit or loss, using the effective interest method. The effective
interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash payments and receipts through
the expected life of the financial instrument (or, when appropriate, a shorter period) to the carrying
amount of the financia instrument on initial recognition. When calculating the effective interest rate,
the Series Trust estimate future cash flows considering all contractual terms of the financial
instrument, but not future credit losses.

Interest received or receivable, and interest paid or payable, are recognised in profit or loss as
interest income and interest expense, respectively.

Expenses
Expenses are accounted for on an accruals basis and are recognised in the Statement of
Comprehensive Income.

Taxation

Under the current laws of the Cayman Islands, there is no income, estate, corporation, capital gains
or other Cayman Islands taxes payable by the Master Trust. The Master Trust has received an
undertaking from the Governor in Cabinet of the Cayman Islands that it will be exempt from such
taxes for a period of fifty years from 2 December 2013 should they be enacted. As a result, no
provision for taxes has been made in the financial statements. The Series Trust may be subject to
foreign withholding taxes on certain interest, dividends and capital gains. The amount of tax payable
or receivable is the best estimate of the tax amount expected to be paid or received that reflects
uncertainty related to withholding taxes, if any.

Foreign exchange transactions

Items which are included in the Series Trust’s financial statements, are measured using the currency
of the primary economic environment in which it operates (the “functional currency”), which is
USD. Investments and other assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated
into USD amounts at the date of valuation. Purchases and sales of investments, issue and repurchase
of equity units and income and expense items denominated in foreign currencies are translated into
USD amounts on the respective dates of such transactions. Realised and unrealised gains and losses
arising from trandation, if any, are included in the Statement of Comprehensive Income.
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Notesto the financia statements

31 March 2025
(Continued)

6. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

The SPV Notes
The Series Trust will invest in the SPV Notes in order to obtain exposure to the Private Equity
Portion.

The PE Fund features a subscription mechanism via capital call. Under the PE Fund LPA, the SPV
Issuer can be required to prefund its obligations to make capital calls by transferring the relevant
issuance proceeds of the SPV Notes to an account (the “Escrow Account”) established by, or on
behalf of the PE Fund. The administrator of the PE Fund has authority over such Escrow Account
and can effect the transfers of sums sitting in such account to the PE Fund to meet the SPV Issuer’'s
obligation to satisfy capital calls, as such capital calls are issued. As of 31 March 2025, an amount of
USD5,000,000 (2024: USD10,000,000) is held under escrow account at Morgan Stanley.

Originally, the SPV Issuer was notified that the Escrow Account was opened at Silicon Valley Bank
as directed by the PE Fund. During the period ended 31 March 2023, the Escrow Account was
moved from Silicon Valley Bank to Mizuho Bank. During the year ended 31 March 2024, the
Escrow Account was moved from Mizuho Bank to Morgan Stanley. Pursuant to the PE Fund LPA it
is permitted for the administrator of the PE Fund to arrange for amounts credited to the Escrow
Account to be invested in money market funds or other liquid assets pending the use of such
amounts to satisfy applicable capital cals.

Repurchase of units

The Trustee stands possessed of the assets of the Series Trust for the Unitholder subject to the
provisions of the Master Trust Deed and the Supplemental Trust Deed. The Series Trust classifies
financia instruments issued as financial liabilities or equity instruments in accordance with the
substance of the contractual terms of the instruments.

A puttable financial instrument that includes a contractual obligation for the issuer to repurchase or
redeem that instrument for cash or another financial asset is classified as an equity instrument if it
meets the following conditions:

it entitles the Unitholder to a pro rata share of the Series Trust’s net assets in the event of the
Series Trust’s liquidation;

it isin the class of instruments that is subordinate to all other classes of instruments;

al financial instruments in the class of instruments that is subordinate to all other classes of
instruments have identical features,

apart from the contractual obligation for the Series Trust to repurchase or redeem the instrument
for cash or another financial asset, the instrument does not include any other features that would
require classification as aliability; and

the total expected cash flows attributable to the instrument over its life are based substantially on
profit or loss, the change in the recognised net assets or the change in the fair value of the
recognised and unrecognised net assets of the Series Trust over the life of the instrument.
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31 March 2025
(Continued)

6. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Repurchase of units (continued)

The Series Trust has one class in issue, USD Units. The Series Trust issues units, which are
repurchased at the Unitholder's option and are classified as Equity in accordance with IAS 32,
Financial Instruments: Presentation (“ 1AS 32”), as the above conditions have been met. Should the
Units terms or conditions change such that they do not comply with the strict criteria contained in
IAS 32, the Equity Units would be reclassified to a financial liability from the date the instrument
ceases to meet the criteria. The financia liability would be measured at the instrument’s fair value at
the date of reclassification.

The Units can be put back to the Series Trust at any time for cash equal to a proportionate share of
the Series Trust's total Equity. Units are carried at the repurchased amount that is payable at the
Statement of Financial Position date if the Unitholder exercise their right to put the Units back into
the Series Trust. Units are issued and repurchased at prices based on the Series Trust’s total Equity
per unit at the time of issue or repurchase.

The NAV of the Series Trust is calculated by ascertaining the value of the total assets of the Series
Trust and deducting the total liabilities of the Series Trust. Where there is only one class of units of
the Series Trust inissue, the NAV per unit of the Series Trust is calculated by dividing the NAV  of
the Series Trust by the number of units of the Series Trust in issue. Refer to Note 10 for further
discussion.
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31 March 2025
(Continued)

7. FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The table below shows financia instruments recognised at fair value analysed between those whose

fair value is based on:

Level 1: Quoted price (Unadjusted) in an active market for an identical instrument;

Level 2: Vauation techniques based on observable inputs, either directly (i.e. as prices) or
indirectly (i.e. derived from prices). This category includes instruments valued using: quoted
prices in markets that are considered less than active; or other valuation techniques for which

all significant inputs are directly or indirectly observable from market data; and

Level 3: Vauation techniques using significant unobservable inputs. This category includes
al instruments for which the valuation technique includes inputs not based on observable
data and the unobservable inputs have a significant effect on the instrument’s valuation. This
category includes instruments that are valued based on quoted prices for similar instruments
for which significant unobservable adjustments or assumptions are required to reflect
differences between the instruments.

2025

Financial assetsat FVTPL
Investment in SPV Notes,

at fair value

2024

Financial assetsat FVTPL
Investment in SPV Notes,

at fair value

Level 1 Level 2 Leve 3 Total
usD usD usD usD

- - 26,370,150 26,370,150

- - 26,370,150 26,370,150

- - 26,448,983 26,448,983

- - 26,448,983 26,448,983

The table below sets out information about significant unobservable inputs at 31 March 2025 and
2024, in measuring financial instruments categorised as Level 3 in thefair value hierarchy:

Description
Unlisted private
equity fund

Description
Unlisted private
equity fund

2025

USD26,370,150

2024

USD26,448,983

Vauation
technique

NAV

Vauation
technique

NAV
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31 March 2025
(Continued)

7. FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

The investment in SPV Notes is valued in accordance with the policies described in Note 6 (iii) and
in accordance with the valuation model stated in Appendix 41 to the Offering Memorandum.

There were no transfers across the three levels during the years ended 31 March 2025 or 2024.

The following table shows a reconciliation from opening balances to the closing balances for fair
value measurements in Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy:

Level 3 2025 2024
Financial assetsat FVTPL USD usD
Opening balance 26,448,983 25,968,169
Saes (496,021) -
Realised loss on financial assetsat FVTPL (3,979) -
Movement in unrealised gain on financial assetsat FVTPL 421,167 480,814
Closing balance 26,370,150 26,448,983

The NAV of the Series Trust is sensitive to the NAV of the PE Fund.
Financial instruments not measured at FVTPL
The financial instruments not measured at FVTPL include:

Cash, receivables and fees payable. These are short-term financial assets and financial liabilities
whose carrying amounts approximate fair value, because of their short-term nature.

8. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND ASSOCIATED RISKS

The Series Trust's activities expose it to a variety of financia risks: market risk (including price
risk, currency risk and interest rate risk), liquidity risk and credit risk. The management of these risks
is carried out by the Manager under policies approved by the Trustee.

The Series Trust uses different methods to measure and manage the various types of risks to which it
is exposed; these methods are explained below.

Market Risk
Market risk arises from uncertainty about future prices of financial investments held. It represents
the potential 1oss the Series Trust might suffer through holding market positions in the face of price
movements.
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31 March 2025
(Continued)

8. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND ASSOCIATED RISKS (continued)

Market Risk (continued)

Price Risk

Price risk is the risk that the value of the investment will fluctuate as a result of changes in market
prices, whether caused by factors specific to the Strategy or factors affecting all instruments traded
in the market.

The Trustee, and the Administrator as its delegate of a Series Trust must rely on a single source of
information, namely the report prepared by the Liquidity Intermediary or any of its affiliates, which
is based on the PE Fund Financial Statements, for pricing Investments of a Series Trust related to the
Private Equity Portion including in connection with the calculation of the NAV of a Series Trust.

The PE Fund will invest in illiquid securities, which may ultimately negatively impact the existing
Unitholder because the PE Fund GP may be unable to sell such illiquid securities at an advantageous
time or price.

When a private equity interest held by the PE Fund is sold, the discrepancy may be realized between
itsfair value and its sale price mainly, but not limited to, due to a discount associated with its limited
liquidity and similar factors. The NAV per Unit may drop materially due to the discrepancy
described above.

Depending on the market size and environment of the relevant investments of the PE Fund, when
the PE Fund GP liquidates a private equity interest held by the PE Fund, such liquidation may
negatively impact the market prices of such investments, and the PE Fund GP may end up
liquidating the investments at less favourable prices than originally expected. This may cause the
NAV per Unit to drop.

In addition, where private equity interests held by the PE Fund have unrealised gains, Unitholders
submitting repurchase requests may not benefit from those unrealised gains because such unrealised
gains may not be reflected in the prevailing NAV per Unit.

On the other hand, where private equity interests held by the PE Fund have unrealised losses, the
NAV per Unit may drop materially after the relevant private equity interests are sold, and
Unitholders remaining after submission of repurchase requests may suffer from losses in the future
from those unrealised losses because such unrealised losses may not have been reflected in the
prevailing NAV per Unit at the time of the relevant repurchase.

Asat 31 March 2025, if the price of the investment in SPV Notes had increased by 5% with all other
variables held constant, there would have been an increase in Net Assets of USD1,318,508 (2024:
USD1,322,449). A decrease by 5% with all other variables held constant, would result in an equal
but opposite effect on Net Assets to the figure shown above.
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31 March 2025
(Continued)

8. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND ASSOCIATED RISKS (continued)

Market Risk (continued)
Price Risk (continued)

The table below sets out the concentration of investments held by the Series Trust as at 31 March

2025 and 2024:

2025 2024

% of net assets % of net assets

Investment in SPV Notes - Cayman Islands 113.78% 94.37%
113.78% 94.37%

The Manager monitors the concentration risk for investment in SPV Notes on counterparties.

The exposure to the SPV exceeded 5% of the equity unitsat 31 March 2025 and 2024.

2025 2024

% of net assets % of net assets

VAULT Cayman Il Investments 0% 07-Jun-32 113.78% 94.37%
113.78% 94.37%

The following table summarises the geographical and industry concentration in market price risk of

the PE Fund as at 31 March 2025 as a percentage of net assets of the PE Fund

% of net assets of

Country Fair Vaue the PE Fund
United States of America 196,652,941 29.00%
Japan 185,829,117 27.40%
European Union 135,142,656 19.93%
United Kingdom 19,999,932 2.95%
Singapore 3,568,487 0.53%
541,193,133 79.80%

% of net assets of

Industry Fair Vaue the PE Fund
Software 532,260,001 78.49%
Hardware 5,364,645 0.79%
Other 3,568,487 0.53%
541,193,133 79.80%

Notesto the financia statements
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8. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND ASSOCIATED RISKS (continued)

Market Risk (continued)

Price Risk (continued)

The following table summarises the geographical and industry concentration in market price risk of
the PE Fund as at 31 March 2024 as a percentage of net assets of the PE Fund

% of net assets of

Country Fair Vaue the PE Fund
Japan 134,009,277 27.17%
United States of America 91,209,631 18.49%
European Union 82,625,099 16.75%
Singapore 3,568,487 0.72%
311,412,494 63.14%

% of net assets of

Industry Fair Vaue the PE Fund
Software 307,844,007 62.41%
Other 3,568,487 0.72%
311,412,494 63.14%

Currency Risk
Currency risk represents the potential losses that the Series Trust might suffer due to adverse

movements in non-base currency exposures. Since the investment in SPV Notes, at fair value is
denominated in the base currency of the Series Trust, the statement of financial position and
statement of comprehensive income will not be significantly affected by currency movements and
as aresult, asenditivity analysis has not been performed.

Interest Rate Risk
Interest rate risk represents the potential loss that the Series Trust might suffer due to adverse
movements in relevant interest rates.

Interest bearing assets held by the Series Trust are comprised of cash. As aresult, the Series Trust is
not subject to any significant risk due to fluctuations in the prevailing levels of market interest rates.

An increase in interest rates of 1% on cash at the statement of financial position date would have
increased the total equity by USD19,331 (2024: USD37,423). A decrease in interest rates of 1%
would have had an equal but opposite effect.

The above percentage change is based on reasonable estimates of changes in market interest rates.
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31 March 2025
(Continued)

8. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND ASSOCIATED RISKS (continued)

Market Risk (continued)

Interest Rate Risk (continued)

The table below summarises the Series Trust's exposure to interest rate risks as at 31 March 2025
and 2024. 1t includes the Series Trust’'s assets at fair values, categorised by the earlier of contractual

re-pricing or maturity dates:

Interest Non-interest

bearing bearing Total
2025 usD usD usD
Assets
Cash 1,933,083 - 1,933,083
Investment in SPV Notes - 26,370,150 26,370,150
Receivables - 5,958 5,958
Total assets 1,933,083 26,376,108 28,309,191
Liabilities
Payable for Equity Units redeemed - 4,917,000 4,917,000
Fees payable - 215,950 215,950
Totd liabilities - 5,132,950 5,132,950
Tota interest sensitivity gap 1,933,083
2024
Assets
Cash 3,742,346 - 3,742,346
Investment in SPV Notes - 26,448,983 26,448,983
Receivables - 14,755 14,755
Total assets 3,742,346 26,463,738 30,206,084
Liabilities
Payable for Equity Units redeemed - 1,942,400 1,942,400
Fees payable - 237,016 237,016
Tota liabilities - 2,179,416 2,179,416

3,742,346

Total interest senditivity gap

119/214



EDINETOOOO
00000000000 DO000D0O000OO(ELS389)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

Notesto the financia statements

31 March 2025
(Continued)

8. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND ASSOCIATED RISKS (continued)

Liquidity Risk
Liquidity risk isthe risk that the Series Trust may not be able to settle or meet its obligations on time
or at areasonable price.

Liquidity risk exists when particular investments are difficult to purchase or sell. The Series Trust's
investments in illiquid securities may reduce the returns of the Series Trust because it may be unable
to sell the illiquid securities at an advantageous time or price. The Series Trust’s investments in
private equities are difficult to purchase or sell. The PE Fund in which the Series Trust will be
exposed to, will likely beilliquid. The Private Equity Portion will invest inilliquid securities, which
may reduce the return and original investment principal of the Series Trust because it may be unable
to sell such illiquid securities at an advantageous time or price.

A secondary market has not been established for the SPV Notes in which the Series Trust invests
and will not be established in the future. When selling SPV Notes in response to a cancellation, the
selling price will be determined based on the valuation of the SPV Notes that is reflected to the
valuation of the PE Fund in which the SPV Notes are invested, but supply and demand factors may
force a sale at a price that deviates significantly downward. In such a case, the repurchase price of
the Series Trust will be adversely affected.

If a repurchase request is received on a Repurchase Notice Day, the Investment Manager will
endeavour to sell the Cash Portion (to the extent not already held in cash) to generate repurchase
proceeds. If the repurchase requests received exceed the available Cash Portion, the Investment
Manager will endeavour to sell the SPV Notes included in the Private Equity Portion to generate
repurchase proceeds.

In connection with the forgoing, the Investment Manager is expected to seek quotes for the SPV
Notes from several market participants as part of an SPV Note sale. Given theilliquidity of the SPV
Notes, there can be no guarantee that the Investment Manager will be able to obtain any such quotes
from general market participants.

As aresult, Daiwa VC Accelerator LP. (the “Liquidity Provider”) (indirectly on a back-to-back,
principal-to-principal basis through the Liquidity Intermediary) has entered into arrangements which
are intended to ensure that the Investment Manager can sell up to a certain amount of SPV Notes
from on or around the Repurchase Day and at a minimum price that is sufficient to provide the
Series Trust with the required repurchase proceeds (the “Liquidity Arrangement”).

For such purposes, the Liquidity Provider and the Liquidity Intermediary will enter into a back-to-
back, principal-to-principal purchase letter (the “Back-to-Back Purchase Letter”) and the Liquidity
Intermediary will enter into a principal-to-principal purchase letter (the “Purchase Letter”) with the
Series Trust and the Investment Manager.
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31 March 2025
(Continued)

8. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND ASSOCIATED RISKS (continued)

Liquidity Risk (continued)
The table below analyses the Series Trust's financial assets and liabilities by contractual maturity as

at 31 March 2025 and 2024:

Greater than Lessthan
1 month 1 month Tota

2025 USD USD UsD

Assets

Cash - 1,933,083 1,933,083

Investment in SPV Notes 26,370,150 - 26,370,150

Receivables - 5,958 5,958

Total Assets 26,370,150 1,939,041 28,309,191

Liabilities

Payable for Equity Units redeemed - 4,917,000 4,917,000

Fees payable - 215,950 215,950

Total Liabilities - 5,132,950 5,132,950

2024

Assets

Cash - 3,742,346 3,742,346

Investment in SPV Notes 26,448,983 - 26,448,983

Receivables - 14,755 14,755

Total Assets 26,448,983 3,757,101 30,206,084

Liabilities

Payable for Equity Units redeemed - 1,942,400 1,942,400

Fees payable - 237,016 237,016

Total Liabilities - 2,179,416 2,179,416
Credit Risk

Credit risk isthe risk that a counterparty to afinancia instrument will fail to discharge an obligation
or commitment that it has entered into with the Series Trust. The carrying amounts of financial
assets best represent the maximum credit risk exposure at 31 March 2025 and 2024.

121/214



EDINETOOOO
00000000000 DO000D0O000OO(ELS389)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

Notesto the financia statements

31 March 2025
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8. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND ASSOCIATED RISKS (continued)

Credit Risk (continued)

Credit risk is mitigated by undertaking transactions with approved brokers and other reputable
financial institutions. The Series Trust's financial assets are also held in custody with established
and approved counterparties. All transactions in listed securities are settled/paid for upon delivery
using approved brokers. Payment is made on a purchase once the securities have been received by
the broker. The trade will fail if either party fails to meet its obligation. The Series Trust determines
concentration risk in relation to exposure to individual counterparties.

The Investment in SPV Notes of the Series Trust is held by the Custodian with cash being held at the
Sub-Custodian as banker. All of the cash of the Series Trust are held by the Sub-Custodian at period
end. The Sub-Custodian has a Fitch credit rating of A+ (2024: A+). The Custodian is the London
branch of Sumitomo Mitsui Trust Bank Limited which has a Fitch credit rating of A- (2024: A-).
Bankruptcy or insolvency of the Custodian may cause the Series Trust’s rights, with respect to
investments and cash and cash equivalents held by the Custodian, to be delayed or limited. The
Manager monitors the risk by monitoring the credit quality, financial position and rating of the
Custodian. The Manager has considered the credit rating of these parties and have determined them
to be at appropriate levels.

As the SPVIssuer is not expected to have any access to the cash comprising the issuance
proceeds following the SPV Issuer becoming a limited partner in the PE Fund. Asa result, the
SPV lIssuer and the holders of the SPV Notes, accordingly, will be exposed to (a) the credit
risk of the Escrow Bank and the sums credited thereto (and, upon an insolvency of such bank,
all such sums so credited may be lost in full), (b) the risk of loss (and potentially complete
loss of their investment) as a result of the actions, omissions, fraud, negligence, willful default
or similar of the Escrow Bank, the PE Fund, the administrator of the PE Fund and/or any
party purporting to act on behalf of any of them in connection with the operation of such
Escrow Account and (c) the risk of loss (and potentially complete loss of their investment) as
a result of the performance of any investments made by, or on behaf of, the PE Fund as
contemplated in the PE Fund LPA by application of such cash representing the SPV Issuer’'s
capital contributions credited to such Escrow Account.

Amounts arising from ECL

Impairment on cash and receivables has been measured on a 12-month expected loss basis and
reflects the short maturities of the exposures. The Series Trust considers that these exposures have
low credit risk based on the external credit ratings of the counterparties.

The Series Trust monitors changes in credit risk on these exposures by tracking published external
credit ratings of the counterparties. To determine whether published ratings remain up to date and to
assess Whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk at the reporting date that has not
been reflected in the published ratings, the Series Trust supplements this by reviewing changes in
bond yields, where available, together with available press and regulatory information about
counterparties.
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Notesto the financia statements

31 March 2025
(Continued)

8. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND ASSOCIATED RISKS (continued)

Credit Risk (continued)

Amounts arising from ECL (continued)

12-month and lifetime probabilities of default are based on historical data supplied by BBH & Co.
for each credit rating and are recalibrated based on current CDS prices. Loss given default
parameters generally reflect an assumed recovery rate of 50%. However, if the asset were credit-
impaired, then the estimate of loss would be based on a specific assessment of expected cash
shortfalls and on the original effective interest rate.

As at 31 March 2025 and 2024, the Series Trust held the following financial assets measured at
amortised cost: cash and receivables; of which only receivable is under the scope of ECL model. As
all the receivable have been settled within 1 month after the financial year end, the probability of
default is considered as close to zero. As a result, no loss allowance has been recognised based on
12-month expected credit loss model as any such impairment would be wholly insignificant to the
Series Trust.

9. CASH
2025 2024
usD usD
Cash 1,933,083 3,742,346
1,933,083 3,742,346

Asof 31 March 2025 and 2024, there are no cash equivalents held.
10.NET ASSETSATTRIBUTABLE TO THE UNITHOLDER OF EQUITY UNITS

The Series Trust has one class of units: USD Units.

USD Units 2025 2024
Number of units outstanding as at start of year 285,000 305,000
Number of units redeemed (50,000) (20,000)

Number of units outstanding as a end of year 235,000 285,000
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Notesto the financia statements

31 March 2025
(Continued)

10. NET ASSETSATTRIBUTABLE TO THE UNITHOLDER OF EQUITY UNITS (continued)

Units were offered to investors during the initial offer period at the Issue Price and were
issued on the initia closing date. The minimum subscription amount is 10,000 Unitsin 5,000
Units increments. There will be no subscription fee payable. Units will not be available for
subscription by investors after the initial closing date.

Under the terms of the MasterTrust Deed, Unitholders will be the only persons recognised by
the Trustee as having any right, title or interest in or to Units registered in their name and the
Trustee will only recognise such Unitholders as absolute owner of the Units and will not be
bound by any notice to the contrary. The Trustee will not be bound to take notice of or to see
to the execution of any trust or, save as provided under the Master Trust Deed or save as by
some court of competent jurisdiction orders, to recognise any trust or equity or other interest
affecting the title to any Units.

Following receipt of confirmation that an investor account is open and the delivery of the
Subscription Form to the Administrator, the subscription monies must be remitted in full by
telegraphic transfer from an account in the name of the applicant for the account of the Series
Trust for a cash settlement date on or before the initial closing date. Payment must be made in
uUSD.

Applicants should note that subscription forms received by the Administrator prior to receipt of
confirmation that the applicant's investor account has been opened by the Administrator will
not be processed. In such circumstances the applicant will be required to complete and submit
a new subscription form upon the applicant's receipt of confirmation that their investor account
has been opened by the Administrator. Any subscription monies received into the collection
account of the series trust prior to confirmation that an investor account has been opened will
be rejected and the applicant may be subject to additional bank charges at the qualified
ingtitutional applicant's expense.

Investors may make a repurchase request to the Administrator on the immediately preceding
repurchase notice day in respect of Units for which subscription proceeds have been received by the
Administrator. In order to make a repurchase request, a Unitholder must submit a completed
repurchase notice in such form as the Manager may approve from time to time (the “Repurchase
Notice”) to the Administrator by facsimile, electronic mail (in the form of a signed PDF file) or other
electronic means as agreed in advance with the Administrator specifying the number of Units to be
repurchased by no later than the repurchase notice deadline.

The Repurchase Notice once served is irrevocable, unless the Manager, after consultation with the
Trustee, determines otherwise.

The repurchase price per unit will be calculated as the NAV per Unit as at the relevant repurchase
day (or if that repurchase day is not also a valuation day then on the immediately preceding
valuation day) (plus or minus (at the discretion of the Trustee, in consultation with the Manager)
adjustments for differences between the announced value of those investments of the Series Trust as
at the relevant valuation day that are being realised to fund the relevant repurchase and their
subsequent realised value) (the “Repurchase Price”).
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31 March 2025
(Continued)

10. NET ASSETSATTRIBUTABLE TO THE UNITHOLDER OF EQUITY UNITS (continued)
The minimum number of Units that may be the subject of a repurchase request by a
Unitholder on any repurchase day is 1 Unit and thereafter in 1 Unit increments, unless the
Manager determines otherwise.

11.FEES AND EXPENSES

The Series Trust’'s fees payable as at 31 March 2025 and 2024 are as follows:

2025 2024

USD USD

Distribution fees 64,880 76,689
Manager Support Service Provider 16,220 18,832
Investment Manager fees 12,165 14,379
Fee Agent fees 12,165 14,379
Agent Member Company fees 811 942
Administration fees 10,677 16,708
Custody fees 9,140 9,200
Audit fees 23,500 24,104
Other fees and expenses 66,392 61,783
215,950 237,016

Distribution Fees
The Distributor receives out of the Series Trust, a fee on a quarterly basis at the rate of 0.8% per
annum of the NAV, calculated on each valuation day.

Manager Support Service Provider Fees
The Manager Support Service Provider receives out of the assets of the Series Trust, a fee payable
quarterly in arrears at the rate of up to 0.20% per annum of the NAV.

Investment Manager Fees
The Investment Manager receives out of the assets of the Series Trust, a fee payable quarterly in
arrears at the rate of up to 0.15% per annum of the NAV.

Fee Agent Fees
The Fee Agent receives out of the assets of the Series Trust, a fee payable quarterly in arrears at the
rate of 0.15% per annum of the NAV, calculated on each valuation day.

The Fee Agent is responsible for payment of the Trustee and Manager fees. The Fee Agent will also
cover all costs and expenses pertaining to the Trustee and Manager feesincluding sundry expenses.

The Trustee receives a fixed annual fee of USD10,000 per annum payable annually in advance out

of the Fee Agent Fees. The Trustee is also entitled to be reimbursed out of the Fee Agent Feesfor all
out-of-pocket expenses properly incurred by it in the performance of its duties.
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31 March 2025
(Continued)

11. FEES AND EXPENSES (continued)

Fee Agent Fees (continued)
The Manager receives out of the Fee Agent Fees a management fee of USD5,000 per annum payable
quarterly in arrears.

Agent Member Company Fees
The Agent Member Company receives out of the assets of the Series Trust, a fee payable quarterly
in arrears at the rate of up to 0.01% per annum of the NAV.

Administration Fees
The Administrator receives out of the assets of the Series Trust, a fee payable quarterly in arrears at
the rate of 0.07% per annum of the NAV, calculated on each valuation day.

The Administrator also receives an upfront fee of USD3,750 which is amortised as part of the
set-up costs of the Series Trust. The Administrator is also entitled to a fee of USD5,000 per
annum for the preparation of the annual financial statements and USD1,000 per annum for the
preparation of annual CIMA filing reports.

In addition, the Trustee pays, out of the assets of the Series Trust, the Administrator's reasonable
out-of-pocket expenses.

Custody Fees

The Custodian receives out of the assets of the Series Trust, a fee payable quarterly in arrears at the
rate of 0.025% per annum of the NAV, calculated on each valuation day (subject to a minimum
monthly fee of USD1,500).

The Custodian also receives out of the assets of the Series Trust, any other fees agreed between the
relevant parties and is reimbursed out of the assets of the Series Trust for all out-of-pocket expenses
properly incurred by it in the performance of its duties.

SPV Notes and PE Fund Fees
Investors in the Series Trust will indirectly bear certain fees and expenses payable in respect of the
SPV Notes and the PE Fund.

12. NET GAIN ON INVESTMENTS

2025 2024
usb usD
Net gain on investments consists of the following;
Realised loss on financial assetsat FVTPL (3,979) -
Movement in unrealised gain on financial assets at FVTPL 421,167 480,814
Net gain on investments 417,188 480,814

Notesto the financia statements
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(Continued)

13. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Parties are considered to be related if one party has the ability to control or exercise significant
influence over the other party in making financial or operational decisions. The Trustee, Manager,
Investment Manager, Manager Support Service Provider, Distributor, Fee Agent, SPV Issuer, PE
Fund, Agent Member Company, Administrator, Liquidity Intermediary and Custodian are deemed to
be related parties of the Series Trust.

The Trustee is a related party by virtue of its power to create the Series Trust under the Deed of
Establishment.

The Manager is arelated party by virtue of its power to issue units under the Deed of Establishment
and by virtue of common ownership by the ultimate parent company, UBS AG.

The Investment Manager is arelated parties by virtue of their power to make investment decisions.

The Fee Agent is a related party by virtue of its ability to exercise significant influence as it
provides calculation agency services to the Series Trust. The Fee Agent information is detailed in
Note 11.

The Manager Support Service Provider, Distributor, Agent Member Company, Administrator,
Liquidity Intermediary and Custodian are related parties by virtue of their affiliation with the
Investment Manager.

There were no transactions with related parties other than those in the normal course of business.
Fees incurred with related parties during the year are disclosed in the Statement of Comprehensive
Income and discussed in Note 11. Amounts charged by and payable to related parties as at 31 March
2025 and 2024 are disclosed in Note 11.

14. DISTRIBUTIONS

The Series Trust may generate a certain amount of income annually. The current distribution
policy of the Series Trust is to declare on each Distribution Declaration Day and pay to
Unitholders an annual distribution (an “Annual Distribution”) in respect of each Distribution
Date.

In principle, the amount of distribution to be paid in respect of each Distribution Date shall be
determined by the Manager in its sole discretion taking into account

(@iv) realised income and capital gains in the Private Equity Portion (whose value shal be
reduced by the Realised Amount);

(v) interest accrued, distributions and dividend received from the Cash Portion; and
(vi) interest accrued on the dividend or distribution amounts received from (i) and (ii) above,

until paid out on the corresponding Distribution Date (paragraphs (i) and (iii) hereafter
referred to as the “ Generated Income”)
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14. DISTRIBUTIONS (continued)

The Manager also takes into account the NAV per Unit for determining the amount of
distribution.

Further, it is also important for investors to note that the Manager may, in circumstances
where it deems appropriate, elect that an Annual Distribution is not payable for a relevant
year. Circumstances where the Manager may make such an election, include but are not
limited to where it determines in its sole discretion that application of the Series Trust's
investment objectives and policies have generated a negative performance over the previous
annual period or have underperformed to the extent that the Manager deems it appropriate to
make such an election.

There is no guarantee that any such distributions will be paid and, to the extent that such
distribution is paid, there is no guarantee that any future distributions will be paid or if paid,
will be paid in such amounts.

Any Annua Distribution declared will be paid (net of any taxes payable in respect of such
distribution) on the corresponding Distribution Date. Distributions will be made to the person
in whose name are registered on the register of Unitholders on the relevant Distribution Record
Day. Such distributions will be rounded naturaly to two decimal places with 0.005 being
rounded up.

There were no distributions paid during the years ended 31 March 2025 or 2024. There were no
distributions payable at either year end 31 March 2025 or 2024.

15. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Subsequent to 31 March 2025, there were no subscriptions into or redemptions from the Series
Trust.

In April 2025, there was a sale of USD4,500,000 of the Investment in SPV Notes.

As of 30 July 2025, there were no other events subsequent to the year end, which require disclosure
in the financial statements.
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2025
v v
l. 23,541,564 3,516,874,246
. 134,230 20,052,620
Ii. I-11 23,407,334 3,496,821,626

235,000

V. (R VALY 99.61 14,881
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15 70,562,599
33,254,467,383
2,999,020,334
12 103,184,856,918
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2024 12 31

2024 2023
4 170,000 25,396 185,000 27,637
4 62,322 9,310 60,009 8,965
232,322 34,707 245,009 36,602
4,340 648 6,390 955
9(c) 107,053 15,993 108,643 16,230
5,015 749 48 7
116,408 17,390 115,081 17,192
115,914 17,316 129,928 19,410
5 - - - -
115,914 17,316 129,928 19,410
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2024 12 31

2024 2023
7 170,000 25,396 185,000 27,637
9(a) 864 129 864 129
6 1,955,991 292,205 2,249,019 335,981
2,126,855 317,731 2,434,883 363,747
9(b) 23,303 3,481 16,752 2,503
- - 428,396 63,998
4,339 648 6,436 961
27,642 4,129 451,584 67,462
2,099,213 313,601 1,983,299 296,285
8 735,000 109,802 735,000 109,802
1,364,213 203,800 1,248,299 186,483
2,099,213 313,601 1,983,299 296,285

Nicolas Henri Jean Papavoine
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2024 12 31

2023 735,000 109,802 1,118,371 167,073 1,853,371 276,875
- - 129,928 19,410 129,928 19,410

Sz 12 3 735,000 109,802 1,248,299 186,483 1,983,299 296,285
- - 115,914 17,316 115,914 17,316

2024 12 31 735,000 109,802 1,364,213 203,800 2,099,213 313,601
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2024 2023
115,914 17,316 129,928 19,410
(62,436) (9,327) (60,034) (8,968)

53,478 7,989 69,894 10,441
15,000 2,241 20,000 2,988
6,551 979 (313,301) (46,804)
(428,396) (63,998) 428,396 63,998
(2,097) (313) 37 (6)
(355,464) (53,103) 204,952 30,618
62,436 9,327 60,034 8,968
(293,028) (43,775) 264,986 39,586
(293,028) (43,775) 264,986 39,586

2,249,019 335,981 1,984,033 296,395

1,955,991 292,205 2,249,019 335,981

1,955,991 292,205 2,249,019 335,981
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309 Maples Corporate Services Limited,

P.0. Box 309, Ugland House, Grand Cayman KY1-1104, Cayman Islands
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2024 12 31

2024 2023
170,000 185,000
62,436 60,034
(114) (25)
62,322 60,009
2019 10 10 20
2024 2023
1,955,991 2,249,019
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UBS MANAGEMENT (CAYMAM) LIMITED
(An exempled company incarparated in the Cayran Islands with limited Gability)

STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

For the year ended 21 December 2024

Motes 2024 2023
usD usD
REVENUE
Management fee income: 4 170,000 185,000
Other incomes 4 62,322 60.009
232322 245,009
EXPENSES
Audit fee 4340 6,380
Cirectors fee a(c) 107,033 108,643
Other expenses 5015 48
TOTAL EXFENSES 116,408 115,081
PROFIT BEFORE TAX 115,914 129,928
Tax expense 5 - -
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR AND TOTAL
COMPREHEMNSIVE INCOME FOR THE YEAR 115,914 129,928

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
3
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UBS MANAGEMENT (CAYMAN) LIMITED
{An exempted company incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

31 December 2024

Motes 2024 2023
UsD uso
ASSETS
Management fee receivable 7 170,000 185,000
Amount due from a fellow subsidiary Sia) 864 864
Cash and cash eguivalents [+ 1,965,081 2,249,018
Total assets 2,126,855 2.434 883
LIABILITIES
Amount due to an immediate holding company B(b) 23,303 16,752
Directors’ fee payable - 428,396
Accruals 4,339 6,436
Total liabilities 27,642 451,584
NET ASSETS 2,099,213 1,983,299
EQUITY
Share capital B 735,000 735,000
Retained profits 1,364,213 1,248,289
Total equity 2,098,213 1,983,299

Micolas Hgfiri Jean Fapavoine
Direct

The accompanying notes form an irtegral part of these financial statements.
4
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UBS MANAGEMENT (CAYMAM) LIMITED
(An exempled company incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited Bability)

STATEMENT OF CHAMNGES IM EQUITY

For the year ended 31 Decernber 2024

Share Retained

capital profits Total

uso usD Uso

At 1 January 2023 735,000 1,118,371 1,853,3T1
Profit for the year and total comprehensive

income for the year - 129,928 129,928

At 31 Decemnber 2023 and 1 January 2024 735,000 1,248,293 1,983,299
Prafit for the year and total comprehensive

income for the year - 115.914 115914

At 31 December 2024 735,000 1,364,213 2,088,213
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UBS MANAGEMENT (CAYMAM) LIMITED
(An exemnpled company incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited Gability)

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

For the year ended 31 December 2024

Mote 2024 2023
uso usD
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit before tax 115914 129928
Adjustments for;
Interest income (62, 436) (60.034)
53478 R
Decrease in management fee recevable 15,000 20,000
Increase/(decrease) in amount due to an immediate
holding company 6,551 {313,301}
{Decrease)/ increase in directors” fee payable (428,398) 428 396
Decrease in accruals (2,097} (37)
Cash (used in)generated from operating aclivities (355 ,464) 204,952
Interest income received 62,436 0034
Met cash flows (used in)gensrated
from operating activities (293.028) 264 986
NET ([DECREASE) INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH
EQUIVALENTS (293,028) 264 986
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of year 2,249 019 1,984,033
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF YEAR 1,955,991 2.249.019
ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF CASH AND CASH
EQUIVALENTS
Cash and bank balances ] 1,953,991 2,248 018

The accompanying note form an integral part of these financial statements.
&
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UBS MANAGEMENT (CAYMAM) LIMITED
(An exempted company incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited fability)

MOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 December 2024

g CORPORATE INFORMATION

UBS Management (Cayman) Limited (the “Company™) was incorporated in the Cayman
Islands on 4 Januwary 2000 as an exempted company with limited liability under the
Companies Act, Cap.22 of the Cayman lslands. The Company's registered office is Maples
Corporate Services Limited, P.O. Box 309, Ugland House, Grand Cayman KY1-1104,
Cayman Islands.

The Company's principal activities are the creation of trusts and the administration and
management of assels in trusts.

on 12 June 2023, UBS Group AG acquired Credit Suisse Group AG, succeeding by
operafion of Swiss law o all assels and liabilities of Credit Suisse Group AG, and became
the direct or indirect shareholder of all of the former drect and indirect subsidiaries of Credit
Suisse Group AG (the “Transaction”). The Company was one of the indirect subsidiaries of
Credit Suisse Group AG included in this Transaction,

Upon the completion of the Transaction, each outstanding, registered Credit Suisse share
converted ta the right to receive, subject to the payment of certain fees to the Credit Suisse
depository in the case of Credit Suisse American depository shares, the merger
consideration consisting of /22428 UBS Group AG shares. In aggregate, Credit Suisse
shareholders received 5.1% of the cutstanding UBS Group AG shares on the acquisition
date, with a purchase price of USD3.7 billion.

In December 2023, the Board of Directors of UBS Group AG approved the mernger of UBS
AG and Credit Suisse AG, and bath entities entered into a definitive merger agreement, The
merger is completed on 31 May 2024,

On 1 March 2024, the Beard of Directors has approved to change the name from Credit
Suisse Management (Cayman) Limited) to UBS Management (Cayman) Limited.

The ultimate holding company is UBS Group AG, a company incorporated in Switzerdand.
The directors regarded Credit Suisse (Hong Kong) Limited as the immediate holding
company and UBS AG as the intermediate holding company.

21 BASIS OF PREPARATION

These financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with IFRS
Accounting Standards issued by International Accounting Standards Beard ("|ASE’). These
financial staterments have been prepared on a historical cost basis, excepl for inanciel assets
and liabilities held at fair value through profit o loss, which have been measured at fair value.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with IFRS Accounting Standards
requires management to meke judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the
application of poficies and reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses, The
estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and various cother
factors that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances, the resuits of which form
the basis of making the judgements about camying values of assets and liablities that are
mot readily apparent from other sources, Adual results may differ from these estimates.
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UBS MANAGEMENT (CAYMAM) LIMITED
(An exempted company incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited fability)

MOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 December 2024

21  BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)

These financial statements are presented in United States Dollars ("USD™) and all values are
rounded tothe nearest USD, except where otherwise indicated.

The statement of financial position presents assets and liabilities in order of liquidity and does
not distinguish between current and non-current items.

Certain prior pericd comparative figures are recassified to conform with current vear
presentation.

22  CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND DISCLOSURES

The accounting principles adopted in the current period are consistent with those of the prior
year, There are no other standards, interpretations or amendments to existing standards that
are effective for the current financial peried that have a material impact on the Company.

2.3 |SSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE IFRS ACCOUNTING STANDARDS

The Company has not early applied any of the new and revised IFRS Accounting Standards
that have been issued but are not yet effective for the accounting year ended 31 December
2024 in these financial statements. Among the new and revised IFRS Accounting Standards,
the following is expected to be relevant to the Company's financial statements upon
becoming effective:

IFRS 18 Presentation and Disclosure in Financial Statements

In April 2024, the |1ASE issued IFRS 18, which replaces 1AS 1 Presentation of Financial
Stafernents. IFRS 18 introduces new requirements for presentation within the statement of
profit or loss, including specified totals and subtotals, Furthermore, entities are required to
classify all income and expenses within the statement of profit or loss inte one of five
categories: operating, investing, financing, income taxes and discontinued operations,
whereof the first three are new.

It also requires disclosure of newly defined management-defined performance measures,
subtotals of income and expenses, and includes new reguirements for aggregation and
disaggregation of financial informalion based on the identified ‘roles’ of the pimary financial
statements (PFS) and the notes,

In addition, narow-scope amendments have been made (o IAS 7 Statement of Cash Flows,
which include changing the starting point for determining cash flows from operations under
the indirect method, from 'profit of loss” to ‘operating profit o |oss' and removing the
optionality around classification of cash flows from dividends and interest, In addition, there
are consequential amendments to several other standards, IFRS 18, and the amendments
tothe other standards, is effective for reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2027,
but earlier application is permitted and must be disclosed. IFRS 18 will apply retrospectively.

The Company is currentty working to identify all impacts the amendments will have on the
primary financial statements and notes to the financial statements.

160/214



EDINETOOOO
o o o o o o o =K RS )
Ooooooooooooooooooad

UBS MANAGEMENT (CAYMAM) LIMITED
(An exempted company incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited fability)

MOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 December 2024

23 |SSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE IFRS ACCOUNTING STANDARDS (continued)

Lack of exchangeability — Amendments to |AS 21

In August 2023, the |ASE issued amendments to 1AS 21 The Effects of Changes in Foregn
Exchange Rates to specify how an enfity should assess whether a currency is exchangeable
and how it should determine a spot exchange rate when exchangeability is lacking. The
amendments also require disclosure of information that enables users of its financial
statements to understand how the curmency not being exchangeable into the other curency
affects, or is expected toaffect, the entity’s financial performance, financial position and cash
florw s

The amendments will be effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1
January 2025, Early adoption is permitted. but will need to be disclosed, When applying the
amendments, an entity cannol restate comparative information.

The amendments are not expected to have a material impact on the Company's financial
statements.

3 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Related parties
A party is considered to be related to the Company if;
a) The party is a person or a close member of that person's family and that person.
il has contrad or joint contral over the Company,
i) has significant influence over the Company; or
i) is a member of the key management personnel of the Company or of a parent of
the Company;

b} The party is an entity where any of the following condition applies:

i} the entity and the Company are members of the same group;

ii) one entity i5 an associate or joint ventures of the ather entity (or of a parent,
subsidiary or fellow subsidiary of the other entity);

iy the entity and the Company are joint ventures of the same third party;

iv) one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and ather entity is an associate of the
third entity;

w)  the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit of employees of either
the Company or an entity related to the Company,

wi) the entity is controlled or jointhy controlled by a person identified in (a);

wii) a person identified in (a)ii) has significant influence over the entity or is a member
ofthe key management personnel of the entity (or of a parent of the entity); and

wiii) the entity, or any member of a group of which it is a pard, provides key
management personnel services to the Company or to the parent of the
Company,
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UBS MANAGEMENT (CAYMAM) LIMITED
(An exempted company incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited fability)

MOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 December 2024
3 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Lash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents in the statement of financial posttion comprise cash on hand and
at banks, and short-term highly liquid deposits with a maturity of generally within three
meonths that are readily convertible into known amounts of cash, subject to an insignificant
risk of changes in value and held for the purpose of meeting short- term cash commitments.

For the purpose of the staterment of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash
on hand and at banks, and shari-term depeosits, as defined above, less bank overdrafts which
are repayable on demand and form an integral part of the Company's cash management,

(i) Classification
In accordance with IFRS 9. the Company classifies its financial assets and financial
[iabilities at initial recognition into the categories of inancial assets and financial liabilities
discussed below.

In applying that classification, a financial asset of financial liability is considered to be

held for trading if;

{a)lt is acquired or incumred principally for the purpose of selling or repurchasing it in the
near tem, or

(b)Cn initial recognition, it is part of a portfolio of identified financial instruments that are
managed together and for which, there is evidence of a recent actual pattemn of short-
term profit-taking, or

(chit is a derivative (edcept for a dervative that is a financial guarantes contract or a
designated and effective hedging instrurment)

Financial assels

The Company classifies its financial assets as subseguently measured at amortised cost
or measured at FWVPL on the basis of both:

+ The entity's business model for managing the financial assets

+ The contractual cash flow characteristics of the financial asset

Financial assets measured al amortised cosf

A, debt instrument is measured at amortised cost if it is held within a business model
whose chjective is to hold financial assets in order o collect contractual cash flows and
its contraciual terms give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solady payments
of principal and interest ("SPPI") an the principal amount cutstanding. The Company
includes in this category shod-term non-financing receiables.

ancial assels mes it E

Afinancial asset is measured at F\WVPL if:

(a)lts contractual terms do not give rise to cash flows on specified dates that are SPFI
on the principal amount cutstanding; or

(L)t is not held within a business model whose objective is either (o collect contractual
cash fliows, or to bath collect contractual cash flows and sell; or

(chAt initial recognition, it is irrevocably designated as measured at FWPL when doing so
eliminates or significantly reduces a measurement or recogniion inconsistency that
would ctherwise arise from measuring assels or liabilities or recognising the gains
and losses on them on different bases.,

10
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UBS MANAGEMENT (CAYMAM) LIMITED
(An exempted company incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited lability)

MOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 December 2024

i MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Einangial instryments {continued)
(i) Classification (continued)

Financial liabilities

Financial labilites measured at FVPL

A financial Bability is measured al FVPL if it meets the definition of held for trading or is
designated as measured at FWPL upon initial recognition.

Financial fabiites measured at amortised cost
This category includes all financial liabilities, other than those measured at FVPL, The
Company includes in this category amounts relating to short-term payables.

(il) Recognition
The Cempany recognises a financial asset or a financial liability when, and only when, it
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.

Furchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within the time frame
generally established by regulation or convention in the marketplace (regular way trades)
are recognised on the trade date. i.e., the date thal the Company commis to purchase
or sell the assel,

(iii} Initial measurement
Financial assets and financial hiabilities at far value through profit or loss are recorded in
the statement of financial position at fair value. All transaction costs for such instruments
are recognised directly in profit o loss and other comprehensive income.

Financial assets and financial Babilites (cther than those classified as at fair value
through profit or loss) are measured initially at their fair value plus amy directly attributable
incremental costs of acquisition or issue.

(iv) Subsequent measurement

After imitial measurement, the Company measures financial instruments which are
classified as at fair value through profit or loss at fair value, Subsequent changes in the
fair value of those financial instruments are recorded in net gains or losses on financial
assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss in profit or loss and other
comprehensive income. Interest and dividends earned or paid on these instruments are
recorded separately in interest income or expense and dividend income or expense in
profit or loss and other comprehensive income.

Debt instruments, other than those classified as at fair value through prefit or loss, are
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method less any allowance for

impairment. Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss when the debt instruments
cost are derecognised o impaired, as well as through the amortisation process.

1"
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UBS MANAGEMENT (CAYMAM) LIMITED
(An exempted company incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited lability)

MOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 December 2024

i MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(iv) Subsequent measurement (continuad)

The effective interest method ("EIR™) is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a
financial asset o a financial liability and of allecating the interest income o interéest
expense over the relevant pericd. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash payments or receipts through the expected life of the
financial instrument or, when appropriate, a shorter year to the net carndng amount of
the financial asset or financial liability. When calculating the effective interest rate, the
Company estimates cash flows considering all contractusl terms of the financial
instruments. but does not consider expected credit losses ("ECL"). The calculation
includes all fees paid or received between parties to the contract that are an integral part
of the effective interest rate, fransaction costs and all other premiums or discounts.

(v} Derecognition
A financial asset (or, where applicable a part of a financial asset or part of a group of
similar financial assets) is derecognised where:
+ The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired; or
« The Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has
assumed an obligation to pay the received cash flows in full without material delay to a
third party under a "pass through® arangement and either (a) the Company has
transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Company has
neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but
has transferred control of the asset.

When the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has
entered inte a “pass-through" arrangement, and has neither transferred nor retained
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset nor transferred control of the asset,
the assel is recognised to the extent of the Company’s continuing involvement in the
asset. In that case, the Company also recognises an associated liability. The fransferred
asset and the associated liability are measured on & basis that reflects the rights and
ocbligations that the Company has retained.

The Company derecognises a financial liability when the obligation under the liability is
discharged, cancelled or expired.

12
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UBS MANAGEMENT (CAYMAM) LIMITED
(An exempted company incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited fability)

MOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 December 2024
3 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of financial assets

The Company holds only short-termn receivables with no financing component and which
havie maturities of less than 12 months at amertised cost and, as such, has chosen to apply
an approach similar to the simplified approach for expected credit losses ("ECL™) under IFRS
9 to all its receivables. Therefore, the Company does not track changes in credit risk. but
instead, recoanises a [oss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date.

The Company's approach to ECLs reflects a probability-weighted cutcome, the time value of
meney and reasonable and supportable information that is available without undue cost or
effort at the reporting date about past events, cument conditions and forecasts of fulure
economic conditions.

The Company uses the provision matrix as a practical expedient to measuring ECLsS on
receivables, based on days past due for groupings of recelvables with similar loss patterns.
Receivables are grouped based on their nature. The provision malrix is based on historical
abserved loss rates over the expected life of the receivables and is adusted for forward-
looking estimates,

Fair value measurement
The Company measures its investment in financial instruments at fair value at each repoding
date,

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in
an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date,

The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset
or transfer the liability takes place either in the princpal market for the asset or liability, or in
the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability.
The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible tothe Company.

The fair value for financial instruments traded in active markets at the reporting date is based
on their market qucted price within the bidfask price or broker qudtations which could be
indicative prices, without any deduction for transaction costs. Securnties defined in these
accounts as listed’ are traded in an active market,

For all other financial instruments not traded in an active market, the fair value is determined
by using valuation techniques deemed to be appropriate in the circumstances. Valuation
technigues include the market approach (i.e., using recent arm's length market fransactions
adusied as necessary and reference to the current market value of ancther instrument that
is substantialby the same) and the income appreach (i.e., discounted cash flow analysis and
oplion pricing models making as much use of available and supportable market data as
possible).

13
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UBS MANAGEMENT (CAYMAM) LIMITED
(An exempted company incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited fability)

MOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 December 2024

3 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

{continued)
All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial
statements are categonsed within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows:

Level 1 - CQuoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement is directhy or indirectly observable

Level 3 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair
wvalue measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on a recurming basis,
the Company determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy
by re-assessing the categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the
fair value measurement as a whole) at the beginning of each reporing peried,

Provisions
A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal or constructive) has arisen as a
result of a past event and it is probabde that a future cutflow of rescurces will be required to
settle the ocbligation, provided that a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the
abligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount recognised for a provision is the
present value at the end of the reporting period of the future expenditures expected to be
required to seftle the chligation. The increase in the discounted present value amaount arising
from the passage of time is included in the statement of profit or loss.

Bevenue recognition

Reveniue from confracts with clients

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when the control of goods or services
is transferred to the customers at an amount that refiects the consideration to which the
Company expects to be entifled in exchange for those goods or services,

(a) Management fee
Management fee income is recognised over time because the customer simultanecusly
receives and consumes the benefits provided by the Company.

Other income

Interest income

Interest income is recognised on an accrual basis using the effective interest method by
apphing the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash receipts over the expected
life of the financial insirument or & shorter period, when appropriate, to the net camying
amount of the financial asset,

Funclional currency
These financial statements are presented in United States dollar, which is the Company's
functional and presentation currency.

14
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UBS MANAGEMENT (CAYMAM) LIMITED
(An exempted company incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited fability)

MOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 December 2024

3 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Transactions denominated in foreign currency are translated into the functional currency of
the reporting unit at the spat exchange rate on the date of the transadtion. At the end of the
reporting pericd, all monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currency are
translated to the functional currency using the closing exchange rate. Differences arising on

settlement or translation of monetary tems are recognised in profit or loss.

Meon-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency shall
be translated using the exchange rates at the date of the initial transactions. Mon-monetary
iterms measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates
at the date when the fair value was measured The gain or loss arising on franslation of a
non-monetary item measured at fair value is treated in line with the recognition of the gain or

loss on change in fair value of the item.

Expenses
All expenses are recognised in the statement of profit or loss on an accrual basis.

4. REVEMUE AND OTHER INCOMES

The principal activities of the Company are the creation of frusts and the administration and
management of assets in trusts. Total revenue and other income recognised during the year

are as follows:
2024
ush

Revenue:
Management fee income

2023
usD

170,000 185.000

Other incomes include the following:

Bank interest income 62 436 60,034
Foreign exchange differences, net (114} (25)
52,322 60,009

The performance cbligation for management fee income is satisfied over lime as senvices

are rendered,

3 TAXATION

There are no taxes on income or gainsin the Cayman Islands and the Company has received
an undertaking from the Governor in Council of the Cayman Islands exempling it from all
local income, profits and capital taxes for a period of 20 vears from 10 October 2015,

Accordingly, no provision for income taxes is included in these financial statements,
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UBS MANAGEMENT (CAYMAM) LIMITED
(An exempted company incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited fability)

MOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 December 2024

B. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALIENTS

2024 2023
UsD UzD
Cash at bank 1,955,981 2.249.019

Cash at bank eamns interest at floating rates based on daily bank deposit rates. The camying
amount of the cash at bank approximate to their fair values.

T MANAGEMENT FEE RECEIVAELES

2024 2023
uso usD
Management fed receivables 170,000 185.000

Mone of the above assets is either past due or impaired, The financial assets included in the
above balances relate to receivables for which there was na recent history of default,

8. SHARE CAPITAL

2024 2023
usD ush
Issued and fully paid:
735000 (2023: 735,000) ordinary shares
of USD1 (2023 USD1) each 735.000 ¥35.000

The holders of ordinary shares are entitlied torecenve dividends as declared from time to time
and are entitled to one vote per share at general meetings of the Company. All ondinary
shares rank egqually with regard to the Company's residual assets.

Capital managemment

The Company's primary cbjectives when managing capital are to safeguard the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concemn so that it can continue to provide retumns to
shareholders, by prcing services commensurately with the level of risk and by securing
access to finance 8t a reasonable cost. As the Company is part of a larger group, the
Company's sources of additional capital and pdlicies for distribution of excess capital may
also be affected by the group's capital management objectives. The Company defines
“capital” as including all components of equity,

The Company's capital structure is regularly reviewed and managed with due regard to the
capital management practices of the group to which the Company belongs, Adjustments are
made to the capital structure in light of changes in economic conditions affecting the
Company of the group, to the extent that these do not conflict with the directors” fiduciary
duties towards the Comparny.

The Company was no subject to externally imposed capital requirements in the current
period,
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UBS MANAGEMENT (CAYMAM) LIMITED
(An exempted company incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited Bability)

MOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 December 2024

8. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Parties are considered to be related if cne party has the ability to contrd the cther party or
exercise significant influence over the other party in making financial or operational decisions.

Qutstanding balances with related partles
The Company has the following cutstanding balances due fromfitc) related companies as at

the end of reporting period:
Motes 2024 2023
UsD usD
Amount due from a fellow subsidiary (a) 864 864
Amount due to an immediate holding company (b (23,303) {16,752)

(a) Theamount due from a fellow subsidiary represents expenses paid by the Compan'y on
behalf of Credit Suisse (Singapore) Limited. It is unsecured, interest-free and has no
fixed terms of repayment.

(by The amount due to an immediate holding company represents expenses paid by Credit
Suisse (Hong Kong) Limited on behalf of the Company. It is unsecured, interest-free and

repayable on demand.

Transactions with related parties
Except as disdosed elsewhere in the financial statements, during the year ended 31
December 2024, the Company had the following meterial transactions with related paries:

Motes 2024 2023
usD usD

Compensation of key management personnel
of the Company ic) 107,053 108,643

(¢} The details of the remuneration of the directors, being the key management personnel
defined as a related party of the Company
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UBS MANAGEMENT (CAYMAM) LIMITED
(An exempted company incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited fability)

MOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 December 2024

10.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Company's investing activities expose it bo various types of risk that are asscciated with
the financial instruments and markets in which it invests. The most impodant types of
financial risk to which the Company is exposed are market risk, credit and counterparty risk
and Bquidity risk. Market risk includes foreign currency risk and interest rate risk. The
directors oversee the management of these risks.

The nature and extent of the financial instruments cutstanding at the end of reporting pericd
and the risk management palicies employed by the Company are discussed below.

(&) Market risk

Market risk is the risk of loss arising from uncertainty conceming moverments in market
prices and rates, including cbservable variables such as interest rates, credit spreads,
exchange rates, and others that may be only indirectly cbservable such as volatilties
and correlations. Market risk includes such factors as changes in economic
environment, consumption pattern and investors' expectation etc. which may hawve
significant impact on the value of the investments. Market moverment may therefore
result in substantial fluctuation in the financial posifion of the Company,

Foreign cumency risk

The Company is exposed to foreign currency risk primarily through certain transactions
which give rise to payables that are denominated in Hong Kong dollars, Since the Hong
Kong Dollars is pegged to the USD, the Company's exposure to foreign currency risk
in respect of the invoices and expenses denominated in USD is considered to be
minimal,

Interest rale risk

The Company is exposed to interest rate risk only to the extent that it earns bank
interest on cash at bank. At 31 December 2024 and 2023, a change in interest rates
would have no direct material effect on the carnying value of the recognised assets or
[izbilities of the Company.

(by Credit and counterparty risk

Credit and counterparty risk is the nsk of loss resulting from client o counterparty
default and arises on credit exposure in all forms, including settlement risk. The
Company's credit and counterparty risk is primarily attributable to cash and cash
equivalents and amounts due from related companies. The Company's management
regularly menitors the credit and counterparty rsk of all the financial assets. It is
considered that they are not past due or impaired for each of the reporting dates under
review. Mone of the Company’s financial assets are secured by collateral or other credit
enhancements.

The directors considered the credit and counterparty risk as minimal since the
Company's clients are the Company's related companies.
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UBS MANAGEMENT (CAYMAM) LIMITED
(An exempted company incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited fability)

MOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 December 2024

10, FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(¢)  Liquidity risk

Liguidity risk is the nisk that the Company will encounter difficulty in raising funds to
meet commitments associated with financial liabilities. The Company's strategy is to
minimise its exposure to liquidity risk by monitoring the Company's liquid capital from
tirne to time and by obtaining funds from parfners whene necessary,

The following table summarises the maturity profile of the Company's financal liabilities
based on contractual undiscounted payments. Balances due within one year equal their
carmying ameaunts, as the impact of discounting is insignificant, The table also analyses
the maturity profile of the Company's finandal assets {(undiscounted where appropriate)
in order to provide a complete view of the Company's confractual commitments and
liquidity.

Financial iabilities
The maturity grouping is based on the remaining pericd from the end of the reporting
period to the contractual maturity date. When a counterparty has a choice of when the
ameunt is paid, the liability is allocated to the earliest period in which the Company can
be reguired to pay.

Financial agsets

The analysis into maturity groupings is based on the remaining pericd from the end of
the reporting pericd to the contractual maturity date or, if earlier, the expected date on
which the assets will be realised.

On Less than 12 M
demand 3 months manths maturity Tofal
LD ush uso Ush ush
31 Decermber 2024
Fimancial labiftes
Amounts due to the
immediate holding
company 22303 - - - 22 303
42 303 - - - 22,303
On Less than 12 Mo
demand 3 months months maturity Total
LD uso uso UsD uspD
31 December 2023
Financial abiltes
Amounts due to the
immediate holding
company 16.752 . . . 16,752
Directors’ fea
payable 428,395 = - - 428, 356
445,148 - - - 445,148
19
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UBS MANAGEMENT (CAYMAM) LIMITED
(An exempted company incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited hability)

MOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 December 2024

1.

UMCONSOLIDATED STRUCTURED ENTITIES

The Company considers itself the sponsor of a structured entity when either its name appeaars
in the name of the structured entity or in produdts issued by it or there is a general expectation
from the market that the Company is associated with the structured entity or the Company
was involved in the design or set up of the structured enfity and has a form of involvement
with the structured entity.

The below unconsclidated structured entities are sponsored by the Company where a fixed
annual management fee of USDS, 000 (2023: USDS,000) each is received but no interest is
held by the Company as at 31 December 2024,

Australian High Dividend Equity Twin Alpha Fund {For Qualified Instiutional Investors Only)
US REIT Premium Fund (For Qualified Institutional Investors Only)

Principal / CS Canadian Equity Income Fund (For Qualified institutional Investors Only)
Global REIT Triple Premium Fund {For Qualified Institutional Investors Only)®

US Preferred REIT Income Fund (For Qualified Institutional Investors Only)*

Japan Equity Premium Fund (For Qualified Institutional Investors Only)

MEMYAM US REIT Income Fund (For Qualified Instituticnal Investors Only)*

Daiwa UK High Dividend Equity Fund (For Qualified Institutional Investors Only)*
Brazil Equity Alpha Fund {For Qualified Institutional Investors Cnly)

Daiwa Brazitian Real Bond Fund (For Qualified Institutional Investors Only)

Missay Japan Equity Active Fund (For Qualified Institutional Investors Only)

AMP Australia REIT Fund (For Qualified Institutional Investors Onlky)

J-REIT and Real Estate Equity Fund (For Qualified Institutional Investors Cnly)

Daiwa American High Dividend Equity Quattro Income Fund (For Cualified Institutional
Investors Onby)

Daiwa American REIT Quattro Income Fund (For Qualified Institutional Investors Only)
Shinsel World Wrap Stable Type (For Qualified Institutional Investors Only)

US REIT Triple Engine Plus Fund {For Qualified Institutional Investors Only)

US Municipal Bond Fund

Tokio Marine CAT Bond Fund*

Global High Dividend Equity Premium Fund (For Qualified Institutional Investors Only)
Meister's Collection

PIMCO Short Term Income Strategy Fund

PIMCO Short Term Strategy

Daiwa J-REIT Covered Call Fund {For Qualified Instituficnal Investors Only)

Foreign Currency Denominated Man AHL Smart Leverage Strategy Fund

SBI PICTET Asia Hi-Tech Venture Fund

AUD Short Term Bond Fund

Insight Alpha

US Dynamic Growth

Premium Carry Strategy Fund

BESMD Glcbal Advantage

Daiwa Wil Wentures Il L.P. Fund

Japan Equity Premium Strategy Fund

Global Salect Carry Strategy Fund

* The funds were terminated during 2024,
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UBS MANAGEMENT (CAYMAM) LIMITED
(An exempted company incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited Bability)

MOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 December 2024

11, UNCOMSOLIDATED STRUCTURED ENTITIES (continued)

The Company has not provided financial or other support to unconsclidated structured
entities that it was not contractually required to provide.

The Company does not currently hawve the intention to provide financial or other support to
unconsolidated structured entities that is not contractually required to provide.

12, APPROVMAL OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The financial statements were approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors
an 21 May 2025,
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(Ireland) Limited

2025

Branch

2025

UBS

2024 12

2025

100

62,992,338
31

3,420

449
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Elian Trustee Cayman Limited

14,939

2022 11

SMT Fund Services

107 5,594
170.75

1995

Sumitomo Mitsui Trust Bank, Limited London
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JSDA
JSDA
2025 1,000
1999 26
UBS AG, London Branch
2024 12 386 576 6,454
1978 28
1997 12
1998 29
1862 1872
CHE-101.329.561
Aktiengesellschaft
NYSE
NYSE
UBS UBS 100

UBS
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2025 500,000
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197.93
1987
2025 414 2,454

1959

(Ireland) Limited
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1998

9,896
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Daiwa Asset Management (Europe)

Elian Trustee Cayman Limited

SMT Fund Services

Sumitomo Mitsui Trust Bank, Limited London
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Daiwa Asset Management (Europe)
Ltd

UBS UBS
UBS

179/214



EDINETOOOO
o o o o o o o =K RS )
Ooooooooooooooooooad

1.1 1993

1.2
1960

1.3

1993

2020
2020

1.4

1.5 2022 12
12,995 3,224
2020
2020

1.6

2.1

2.2
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3.4

15

80,000

4.1

21

2020

100,000
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48

5.3
3.2

5.4
10

5.5

5.6

5.7

5.8
24,390 30,488 8,536

36,585 42,682 8,536
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KPMG LLP
P.O. Box 493
SIX Cricket Square
Grand Cayman KY1-
1106 Cayman Islands

+1 345 949 4800

+1 345 949 7164

Web www.kpmg.com/ky

UBS 11} WiL
2025 3 31

IFRS 2025 3
31

ISA

IESBA
IESBA

IFRS

ISA
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KPMG LLP

P.O. Box 493

SIX Cricket Square
Grand Cayman KY1-
1106 Cayman Islands
Tel +1 345 949 4800
Fax +1 345949 7164
Web www.kpmg.com/ky

Independent Auditors' Report to the Trustee

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Daiwa Wil Ventures Ill, LP. Fund (the "Series Trust") a series trust of UBS
Universal Trust (Cayman) Ill (the "Master Trust"), which comprise the statement of financial position as at March 31, 2025, the
statements of comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows for the year, then ended, and notes,comprising material
accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial positionof the Series
Trust as at March 31, 2025, and its financial performance and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with IFRS
Accounting Standards as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board ("IFRS Accounting Standards").

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing ("ISAs"). Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the "Auditors' Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements" section of our report.
We are independent of the Series Trust in accordance with International EthicsStandards Board for Accountants International
Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (including International Independence Standards) ("IESBA Code") together with the
ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in the Cayman lIslands, and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the IESBA Code. We believe that the audit evidencewe

have obtainedis sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance with IFRS
Accounting Standards, and for such internalcontrol as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of

financial statements that are free from materialmisstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Series Trust's ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the goingconcern basis of accounting
unlessmanagement either intendsto liquidate the Series Trust or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Series Trust's financial reporting process.
Auditors' Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors' report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance
is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or
in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
financialstatements.
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As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgmentand maintain professional skepticism throughout
the audit. We also:

Identify and assessthe risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and
perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a materialmisstatement resulting from fraud ishigher than for one resulting from

error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the

circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Series Trust's internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related

disclosures made by management.

Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the goingconcern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Series Trust's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a materialuncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditors' report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditors' report. However,
future events or conditions may cause the Series Trust to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and contentof the financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether the

financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit
and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

July 30, 2025

209/214



EDINETOOOO
o o o o o o o =K RS )
Ooooooooooooooooooad

UBS

UBS 2024 12 31

2024 12 31

1ASB IFRS

ISA

IFRS

1SA

210/214



EDINETOOOO
o o o o o o o =K RS )
Ooooooooooooooooooad

UBS

1SA

2025 5 21

211/214



EDINETOOOO
o o o o o o o =K RS )
Ooooooooooooooooooad

Independent auditor s report
To the sole member of UBS Management (Cayman) Limited
(An exempted company incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of UBS Management (Cayman) Limited (the "Company™),
which comprise the statement of financial position as at 31 December 2024, and the statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, the statement of changes in equity and
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements,
including material accounting policy information.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material
respects, the financial position of the Company as at 31 December 2024 and of its financial
performance and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with IFRS Accounting
Standards as issued by International Accounting Standards Board (““1ASB””).

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing ("'ISAs™). Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor-"s
responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (the "Code™) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants,
and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our opinion.

Responsibilities of the directors for the financial statements

The directors are responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial
statements in accordance with IFRS Accounting Standards, and for such internal control as
the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the
Company”s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related
to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either
intend to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but
to do so.
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Independent auditor *s report (continued)
To the sole member of UBS Management (Cayman) Limited
(An exempted company incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

Auditor®™s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as
a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor”s report that includes our opinion. Our report is made solely to you, as a body, and
for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any
other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with I1SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or
in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of
users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgement and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those
risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud
is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of

expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company"s internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the directors.
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Independent auditor *s report (continued)
To the sole member of UBS Management (Cayman) Limited
(An exempted company incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

Auditor®s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements (continued)

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors® use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company"s
ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor®s report to the related
disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify
our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of
our auditor"s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease
to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with the directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies
in internal control that we identify during our audit.

Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong
21 May 2025
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